
AMERICAN FORK CITY COUNCIL
WORK SESSION MINUTES

JUNE 20, 2013

WORK SESSION
The purpose ofCity Work Sessions is to prepare the City Councilfor upcoming agenda items onfuture City Council
Meetings. The Work Session is not an action item meeting. No one attending the ‘fleeting should rely on any
discussion or any perceived consensus as action or authorization. These come only from the City Council Meeting.

The American Fork City Council met in a work session on Thursday, June 20, 2013, at the
American Fork Fire/Rescue Station, located at 96 North Center, commencing at 3:30 p.m. Those
present included Mayor James H. Hadfield, Councilman Brad Frost, Councilman Craig Nielsen,
Councilman Robert Shelton, and Councilman Clark Taylor. Councilmember Heidi Rodeback
was excused.

Staff present: Administrative Services Director Melanie Marsh
City Arborist Russ Fotheringham
Deputy Recorder Terilyn Lurker
Finance Officer Cathy Jensen
Fire Chief Kriss Garcia
Police Chief Lance Call
Public Works Director Dale Goodman
Senior Planner Adam Olsen
Technology Director George Schade

Also present: Travis Jensen, Steven Lord, and one additional person.

DISCUSSION OF THE MODIFICATION OF LOW RISK STANDALONE AND HOME BASED
BUSINESS FIRE INSPECTIONS TO AN OCCUPANT INSPECTION PROGRAM. (OW) — Chief
Garcia
Fire Chief Kriss Garcia stated that they have over 3,000 businesses in American Fork and there
was no way his department could inspect all 3,000 businesses each year. Chief Garcia was
proposing a self-inspection program where home-based businesses will basically inspect
themselves by going through a checklist. The intent was to cut down on the number of business
inspections each year.

Mayor Hadfield stated that he has reviewed this and thought this was great.

Councilmember Shelton asked if this was a one-time inspection. Chief Garcia stated this was an
annual inspection for those home-based businesses with a low number of occupants. It would be
attached to the business license renewals and once the bugs have been worked out they would
roll this out to other low-risk businesses. Chief Garcia stated this was for those businesses that
would not impact any other business if they have an issue.

Mayor Hadfield stated that some home-based businesses have parking issues, and he felt they
needed to address that. Councilman Frost agreed. Chief Garcia stated they could add a question
regarding adequate parking on the form.

June 20,2013 Work Session Minutes



Councilman Nielsen asked how many home-based businesses were operating in American Fork.
Chief Garcia answered that there were between 600 and 700. Chief Garcia stated that there are
over 3,000 businesses and only one and a half inspectors; Unified Fire Department inspects over
9,000 businesses and they have 13 inspectors. Chief Garcia noted that part of the duties of the
on-duty firemen was to do inspections.

Mayor Hadfield stated that this was on for action at the next City Council meeting.

DISCUSSION ON THE ADOPTION OF UPDATED INTERNATIONAL CODES - ChiefGarcia
and Dan Rojas
Chief Garcia stated the updated International Codes were adopted every four years; the Utah
State Legislature adopts the codes and then municipalities follow suit. He stated that the
International Fire Code was adopted as well as the appendixes at the back of that code.

Councilman Shelton asked what would happen if the City adopted an ordinance that conflicted
with the codes. Chief Garcia stated that the City’s Ordinance would override the International
code as long as it was more restrictive; ordinance could be more strict but not less strict.

Mayor Hadfield noted that there were several different building codes that cover different
construction types that the City needs to adopt.

DISCUSSION ON PARKING STRIP WIDTHS AND TREE PLACEMENT OPTIONS - Staff
Mayor Hadfield explained that they have the City Forester to present to them his opinion on what
to do with trees and park strips.

Russ Fotheringham stated they have been looking at park strip widths because of issues with the
sidewalks and tree roots causing problems to the infrastructure. His preference would be for a
curb, gutter, and sidewalk combination because it puts the trees on private property, setting the
trees farther back from the streets and becoming the homeowner’s responsibility. Mr.
Fotheringham stated that if they keep park strips, he would recommend wider park strips so that
there would be more room for the trees to grow. Tree roots go where the nutrients and water can
be found, and that means going under the sidewalk.

Mayor Hadfield stated that they have a 60-foot cross section standard with a 2-foot curb/gutter,
5-foot park strip, 4-foot sidewalk and 1-foot between the sidewalk and the property line. If they
were to change that and eliminate the 1-foot between the sidewalk and property line, they could
have a 6-foot planter strip. They have many options. In Orem they have combination curb,
gutter, sidewalk and the light polls and mail boxes are in the sidewalk. He pointed out that the
postmaster was now having gang mailboxes installed, which gave them one more reason for a
wider planter strip.

Councilman Shelton commented that sometimes the park strips are neglected. He could see the
wisdom of wider park strips, but what if the roots crack the sidewalk from the homeowner’s
side? Can the city tell them to fix it? Mr. Fotheringham thought it was the city’s responsibility
to fix that. Mayor Hadfield stated that it was the city’s past practice to approach the homeowner
for a 50/50 split.

2
June 20,2013 Work Session Minutes



Councilman Taylor commented that he liked the combination, but thought that the cars would be
parking on the sidewalk. When they talked about it, they talked about widening the sidewalk. It
was noted that American Fork no longer allowed rolled curbs in the city.

Mr. Fotheringham stated that other cities are going to even wider park strips at ten feet and wider
sidewalks.

Councilman Taylor asked if they could allow only certain types of trees. It was noted that was
currently in the ordinance. Mr. Fotheringham stated that some cities, such as Springville, require
a permit to plant trees in the park strip. It was mentioned that there are landscape requirements
with each subdivision.

Dale Goodman stated this topic came up so that they could make the change as part of the
Transportation Master Plan update.

Mayor Hadfield asked if the Planning Commission had approved this. Mr. Olsen stated that they
have looked at this but have not taken any action; however, they were not comfortable with a 10-
foot park strip but were okay with a 6-foot park strip.

Councilman Shelton commented that people do not realize that there are fence permits and he
wondered how successfiil tree permits would be.

Councilman Taylor stated that there were a few newer subdivisions, but the 10 foot park strips
seemed excessive to him. He felt they did need to find a solution.

Mr. Fotheringham re-stated that he would recommend a minimum of a 6-foot park strip with the
right tree.

Councilman Shelton stated that he had talked to a landscape architect who recommended at least
a 6-foot or 8-foot park strip.

Councilman Taylor stated they should start with a 6-foot park strip with a 5-foot sidewalk.

Councilman Frost was comfortable with a 6-foot park strip and asked if trees were something
that could be addressed with a building permit. Mr. Olsen stated that the final plat of a
subdivision included a landscape plan so that each lot has at least one street tree; the cost of a
tree was included in the bonding requirements

Mayor Hadfield noted that the pavement was shrinking slightly to compensate for the wider park
strip width. He commented that he wanted to talk to Andy Spencer first before they made any
changes.

Mr. Fotheringham stated that if they kept park strips, his ideal width would be 8 feet but a
minimum of a 6-foot park strip with the right tree was acceptable.

Councilman Shelton stated that if they require permits, they may not get a lot of compliance but
if a tree was already planted the homeowners most likely would not take out a tree to plant a new
one. Councilman Frost stated that most people do not plant trees until the sprinkling systems are

3
June 20, 2013 Work Session Minutes



in. Mayor Hadfield stated that there are some communities that require landscaping to be in
before occupancy or they will bond for those improvements. Mayor Hadfield stated that the
landscaping is required at the final plat and the developers know what need to go in; there were
multiple ways to make sure the appropriate tree was planted.

Mr. Goodman stated he was a proponent of the curb/gutter/sidewalk combo for maintenance.
From a homeowners stand point, the snow was piled in the park strip which leaves no place to
get out of the sidewalk. The homeowner’s responsibility was to keep the sidewalk clear and
would need to throw the snow on the lawn.

Mayor Hadfield asked the City Council to think about this and noted it would be discussed when
Andy Spencer was back.

DISCUSSION OF THE BIKE AND PEDESTRIAN MASTER PLAN AND THE
TRANSPORTATION MASTER PLAN - Staff
Travis Jensen stated that they have taken all of the input and comments into account with this
plan. However, there were two items that Councilman Shelton wanted addressed.

Mr. Olsen stated that the Planning Commission had previously submitted comments to the
consultants and they discussed those comments last night.

Mr. Jensen stated that the first issue they needed to discuss was the Mill Lane pathway just off of
100 East. This pathway was inherited from previous trails plans; however, there have been
discussions on whether to include that in this plan. Councilman Shelton had suggested they
consider moving the trail along 200 East and installing a wide sidewalk on one side of the street.
There was another concern with a lack of safe area to cross 100 East. So, they included in the
plan a 5-foot sidewalk on each side all the way down 200 East so the pathway would be along
that road. If they were to include the Mill Lane Pathway, they included two pedestrian flashing
warning signs that will flash brightly when pedestrians push a button. Another thing they would
want to do would be to bold out the curb so that pedestrians were very visible to traffic and also
to have a concrete median in the middle. They did not want to put in a pathway that would
encourage people to “frogger” across the street; people will cross the road, regardless of whether
there was a safe way to do that. Mr. Jensen stated that if the City did not want to include
something that would help pedestrians cross the street then they need to take that path off the
plan. If they choose to keep that path, they need to put in a clear note in the table to include
some method to assist pedestrians cross the road.

Mayor Hadfield commented that they recognize there are difficulties with some of the pathways,
but those steps are taken as development occurs.

Councilman Shelton stated that they were already aware that they have an “F” rating on 100 East
and by putting in a pedestrian crossing signal between 300 North and 740 North, they would
create even more congestion. Steve Lord stated this was the same situation on 1100 East by the
hospital and it was not a significant problem; they were unlikely to see a lot of trail traffic at the
same time as street traffic. Mr. Olsen commented that the area was already used, even though
there was no official walkway. Councilman Shelton did not see the wisdom of putting in a trail
without some type of crossing.

4
June 20, 2013 Work Session Minutes



Mr. Jensen suggested that he was hearing that no one was thinking a trail should end at that
location without a good, safe crossing. They could clearly state in the notes that this pathway
goes hand in hand with a safe crossing. They could then decide in the future how that was to be
accomplished.

Councilman Shelton stated that if they do not put in the pathway along Mill Lane, they would put
in a 5-foot sidewalk on 200 East. They would never have the money to adequately finish 200
East; however, if they move the trail over to 200 East then they could apply for MAG funds. It
was noted that Safe Routes to School funds would be the best opportunity to receive funds for
this; this was more of a local project and MAO funds would most likely not be given. Mayor
Hadfield thought that federal funds would be available along 200 East because there are two
schools that affect the area, Forbes Elementary and the Junior High.

Mayor Hadfield stated that at one time they did not have sidewalks on 900 West; however, they
were able to get funding for that project which included the sidewalks. This was the same with
the 50 South project. They take it one step at a time and get funding when they can. He stated
that the 50 South project, River Trail, and 300 North trail came as a result of being ready when
the stimulus package was given.

Mr. Jensen stated that another area Councilman Shelton wanted to look at was on 900 East and
700 North. Mr. Jensen showed a map of the proposed trails in that area.

Councilman Shelton stated that he runs that area often and it is a busy area. He stated there were
two trails plamied that would fork off of the Art Dye Park and he was proposing to include a trail
that went around the Mount Timpanogos Temple. Mayor Hadfield commented that they could
include a pathway behind the rock wall; he thought that including a path around the Temple was
a good idea.

Mayor Hadfield thanked Mr. Jensen for his work on this plan. He stated there needed to be a
few things cleared up before it goes forward for approval.

ADJOURNMENT
The work session adjourned at 4:53 p.m.

Terilyn Lu#er
Deputy Recorder

5
June 20, 2013 Work Session Minutes


